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WESTRAIL FREIGHT, SALE 
Urgency Motion 

THE PRESIDENT (Hon George Cash):  I received the following letter this morning - 

Dear Mr President 

At today's sitting it is my intention to move under SO72 that the House at its rising adjourn until 9 am 
on 25 December 2000 for the purpose of discussing the sale of the Westrail freight division and lease of 
track infrastructure, and to call upon the Minister for Transport to explain: 

(a) the status of sale and contract negotiations; 
(b) the status of the Government's promises on a five year prohibition on line closures; 
(c) how the remaining Westrail Freight debt will be serviced; and 

to provide the Minister with the opportunity to table details of what land will be handed over as part of 
the track infrastructure leasing arrangement. 

Yours sincerely 

Hon Tom Stephens MLC 

Member for Mining and Pastoral Region 

The member will require the support of four members in order to move the motion. 

[At least four members rose in their places.] 

HON TOM STEPHENS (Mining and Pastoral - Leader of the Opposition) [3.39 pm]:  I move - 

That the House at its rising adjourn until 9.00 am on 25 December. 

My intention is to do that which is contained in my motion; that is, to provide the minister with the opportunity 
to respond in detail to those questions it raises.  The Labor Opposition views very seriously the sale of the 
Westrail freight division and the lease of track infrastructure.  It is concerned to make sure that the community 
knows exactly the stage that the contract negotiations have reached.  The Labor Party wants to establish whether 
the community has a more complete understanding of what this sale has produced for the State.   

The Government went out to tender seeking a project manager to sell a $1b asset.  At the time of sale, the asset 
was said to have a debt of $729m.  I am given to understand that the gross sale price was $585m.  Apparently the 
net sale price was $555m, which included the $15m cost of the sale and the roughly $15m in stamp duty.  I will 
not ask the minister to interject, but I hope he can respond to these statements at the completion of my remarks.  
That leaves the State - or Westrail - with a residual debt of $174m, which will cost $11.4m a year to service.   

Since 1993, this asset has provided for a capital upgrade of $493m and paid tax equivalents, and it generated a 
profit of $18m last year and $32m the previous year.  Now Westrail, or the State, has been left with a debt of 
$174m that must be serviced.  If that is correct, who will service that debt?  Will it be the responsibility of 
Westrail, its country passenger operations or its metropolitan operations?  Will that money be raised by 
increasing fares or through some additional grant from the consolidated fund?  If that is the case, in the view of 
the community, and certainly of the Labor Opposition, those funds would be better spent on schools, hospitals 
and community safety.   

Hon M.J. Criddle interjected. 

Hon TOM STEPHENS:  The minister’s senior cabinet colleagues say that this sale is a National Party-driven 
disaster.  Apparently the Minister for Transport and his party have driven this agenda and produced this 
disastrous result for the community of Western Australia.   

Hon M.J. Criddle:  Read the paper and find out.   

The PRESIDENT:  Order!  The Leader of the Opposition has indicated that he wants to get on with his 
contribution.  He has limited time and he will not respond to interjections.   

Hon TOM STEPHENS:  Four consortia tendered for this project.  The tender was closed for less than one week 
prior to the Cabinet’s considering and selecting the successful bidder.  What an extraordinary development!  
Only five days elapsed between the closing of the tender and the selection of the successful bidder.  What 
detailed analysis did the Government, this minister and the Cabinet do before they accepted the tender?  The 
community has every right to be concerned about these processes.  Members on this side of the House, faced 
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with the prospect of taking office within the next couple of months, are very concerned to see this Government’s 
entering into a contract involving obligations such as this after only five days’ consideration.   

This process was predicated on producing competition between rail and road transport.  Instead, it has resulted in 
the largest freight operator in this State - Wesfarmers Transport Ltd - now being in a monopoly situation.  Its 
partner in that monopoly is a small American company that has minimal relevant international experience.  That 
is in dramatic contrast with what was argued by the Government. 

The motion refers to the document titled “The Future of Westrail's Freight Business”.  That document states that 
the Government is committed to -  

No track closures on the grain network other than those already identified and agreed to by the WA 
Grains Logistics Committee Strategic Plan, which deals with the period between now and 2005.  

I ask the minister whether that guarantee is still in place.  Will the contract guarantee that there will be no more 
rail closures within that five-year period?  I also ask the minister where the residual debt of the Westrail freight 
business will now land inside the overall operations of government, and who will service that debt?  What land 
will be handed over as part of the track infrastructure leasing arrangement that will be contracted between this 
Government and the successful bidder? 

The motion is self-explanatory.  The Opposition views this matter with concern - indeed, alarm - and each stage 
of the development of this matter causes us more concern.  We are concerned about the speed with which the 
Government has gone from closing the tender to selecting the successful bidder.  Everyone in the debate knew 
who would be the successful bidder before the process was even embarked upon; and lo and behold, at the end of 
that five-day period, that was the outcome:  Exactly what people in the industry said would happen did happen, 
and Cabinet at the end of five days’ deliberations selected that proponent over complex bids by four allegedly 
competing consortia.   

I could say a lot more.  I have deliberately asked the Minister for Transport a few succinct questions.  I hope we 
will hear from the minister almost immediately; and if the minister can answer those questions satisfactorily, that 
will be the end of the matter as far as we are concerned.   

HON M.J. CRIDDLE (Agricultural - Minister for Transport) [3.48 pm]:  I am more than pleased to answer 
these questions, because I believe the sale of the Westrail freight business has been an outstanding success and 
will be of great benefit to Western Australia.  The Opposition should understand the situation that exists and 
where we may be in a year or so.  It should bear in mind also that an access regime is in place and that seven 
major contracts are involved in the Westrail freight business.  The Alcoa World Alumina Australia business 
comprises one-third of those contracts.  With open access, we might well have a situation where that company 
called for expressions of interest for that work.  If Westrail freight were to lose that business - if it is in 
government hands it cannot compete as well as can the private sector - we would be left with a shell very 
quickly.   

The debt of the Westrail freight business prior to the sale was around $729m.  If that debt were projected out to 
June 2001, it would be $792m.  Therefore, it would quickly lead to a situation of fiscal suicide.  In my view, it 
would be absolute madness to carry on down that track.  The only way to overcome that situation is, as we have 
always said, by getting into Westrail an operator who can grow the business.  The operator has said publicly, and 
it said again in the press gathering that we had when we announced the sale, that it intends to grow the business.  
I believe that when we grow the business and get other products onto the rail network, that will solve many of 
the problems that we have in country areas.  That will lead to the opportunity for competition in the freight rates.  
The Opposition says that the operators have a big road network.  No company would spend approximately 
$585m on the purchase of this business, and commit to expenditure of $400m over the next five years, if it were 
not serious about running a rail network.  Its headquarters will be in Perth and there will be regional offices in 
Kalgoorlie and Adelaide.  It will be a very big operation in the west and south of Australia.  It will also have the 
opportunity to operate the rail network in the north, if that gets going.  Western Australia will have a dynamic 
and sustainable rail system well into the future.  How would the Opposition fund Westrail, in government hands, 
with that sort of scenario?  It is fiscal suicide to continue down that track. 

Hon Ljiljanna Ravlich:  Why did you sell it for half the price? 

The PRESIDENT:  Order!   

Hon M.J. CRIDDLE:  Westrail’s freight business, the rolling stock, terminals and customer contracts will be 
sold under the agreement.  The track network will remain an asset of the State and will be leased to Australian 
Railroad Group Pty Ltd for 49 years.  The urban, passenger and country railway operations will continue under 
state ownership.  I know that the Opposition benches will be keen to hear that about 1 000 Westrail freight 
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business personnel have agreed to be transferred with the sale.  I thank those people for the way in which they 
have cooperated throughout this sale process because they realised their responsibility in running the network.  
They will be in a very good position, which is secure for two years. 

Hon Ljiljanna Ravlich:  Rubbish! 

Hon M.J. CRIDDLE:  It is in the arrangements that the Government has in place.  

Hon Ljiljanna Ravlich:  Two years!  Why have them in the arrangements?  You are a disgrace. 

Hon Norm Kelly:  Can you explain where the other 100 are going? 

Hon M.J. CRIDDLE:  Those people are accommodated in the present Westrail urban system.  They will face 
ongoing employment in the government.  Obviously, natural redundancy is also available, as it is to everybody 
else. 

Hon Ljiljanna Ravlich:  There is no employment in the Government.  Give me a break. 
Hon M.J. CRIDDLE:  Hon Ljiljanna Ravlich would not have a clue. 
Hon Ljiljanna Ravlich:  I have more of a clue than you have. 

Hon M.J. CRIDDLE:  The Westrail freight business has a gearing of 87 per cent, which is very high when most 
rail operations do not accept anything above about 50 per cent.  This is a real difficulty now, and into the future.  
This is the opportunity that the Government intended to take all along - to have a freight operator who will have 
a strict maintenance requirement.  The five-yearly track audits will be in place.  The environmental and other 
risk requirements will be transferred to the purchaser.  The main objective of the Government, which is to grow a 
dynamic business, will be in place.  The company will take on the 85 locomotives and 2 500 railcars. 

I refer to the direct question, which referred to the status of the sale contract and contract negotiations.  The sale 
agreement between the State and the Australian Railroad Group Pty Ltd was executed on 30 October, as the 
member knows.  No further negotiations are necessary.  The matters that must be addressed prior to the 
completion of the contracts are currently being progressed and the final arrangements are expected to be in place 
by early December.  That would complete the transaction.  The status of the Government's promises on the five-
year prohibition on line closures is in the lease agreement.  I will run through them for the benefit of the 
Opposition.  There is no provision for the lessee of the network to close any lines, at any time, during the period 
of the lease.  The lease agreement provides that - 

At any time after six years from the Commencement Date, the Network Lessee may request the 
Minister to terminate this agreement in respect of a particular Line . . . if . . .  

There are three conditions.  I am quoting from the lease agreement to provide members with a clear 
understanding of the agreement.  

The agreement states that for this to occur there must be a significant reduction in use of the lines other than as a 
result of force majeure or if the lessee breaches the lease agreement.  If the continued maintenance of the line, 
according to the prescribed track standards, would for the following three years or more be uneconomic, or if the 
lessee can perform its lease obligations if the line is no longer used, within three months of the end of the 
relevant financial year the network lessee may give notice of that fact to the minister.  Those obligations are in 
the agreement, and of course they will have to be met.  There is also a provision stating that surrender of the 
following lines is not available:  Kwinana-Kalgoorlie, Kalgoorlie-Esperance, Kalgoorlie-Leonora, Perth-
Bunbury, Perth-Geraldton and the Brunswick-Collie line.  Those lines will never be under threat of closure or 
being run down. 

Hon Tom Stephens:  Inside five years? 

Hon M.J. CRIDDLE:  No.  I have just gone through that.  The next question is:  How will the remaining Westrail 
freight debt be serviced?  The administrative arrangements to apply to the residual Western Australian 
Government Railways Commission are still being finalised.  Members will be aware that the commission holds a 
considerable debt on its passenger operation.  The commission’s debt will be managed through the normal 
mechanisms of government debt servicing from government revenue.  Members should remember that the debt 
is blowing out at approximately $100m a year.  The debt has to be serviced, and those opposite do not seem to 
grasp that. 

Hon Tom Stephens:  The Government previously serviced that debt from the Westrail freight operations. 

Hon M.J. CRIDDLE:  The Opposition has to realise that it is blowing out the debt.  It does not seem to 
understand - 
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Hon Ljiljanna Ravlich:  The minister has sold the asset for half the price and the Government has the debt. 

The PRESIDENT:  Order!  Hon Ljiljanna Ravlich will not get an opportunity to speak if she makes her speech 
now.  Let the minister finish so I can call the next speaker. 

Hon M.J. CRIDDLE:  Mr President, I was intending to address that question.  I was getting close to the final 
question, which is:  What land will be handed over as part of the track infrastructure leasing arrangement?  The 
Rail Freight System (Corridor Land) Order 2000 was made under section 34 of the Rail Freight System Act 2000 
by me as the Minister for Transport and was published in the Government Gazette on 27 October.  The schedules 
to that order are held by the Western Australian Government Railways Commission and are available for public 
inspection on application to the commission or to me as minister.  The corridor land to be leased with the track 
network is described in the schedule and comprises a series of maps. 

Hon Tom Stephens:  Can the minister table those today? 

Hon M.J. CRIDDLE:  No, it is not appropriate to table them.  We have gone through the normal processes and 
made the maps available; it would be ridiculous to go through the process of tabling them.  The obvious result of 
this sale will be of great benefit to the people of Western Australia.  I have been reading the Countryman 
recently, and even Hon Kim Chance almost admitted that there was an opportunity.  He thought the price was 
something like $200m, not $2m - if he would admit that - and as a result we had a very good sale.  Certainly, the 
people of Western Australia can look forward to an ongoing rail system. 

HON KIM CHANCE (Agricultural) [3.58 pm]:  I must rise on that invitation from the Minister for Transport.  
He is reading a lot into my short comment in the Countryman by making the assumption that I am happy about 
the outcome.  The minister will recall from the short piece that was published in the Countryman, I think of 2 
November, that I said that we had not supported the sale, and that is still the case. 

I will raise a couple of issues arising from what the minister has told us.  Some of the issues raised by the 
minister in his response surprised me.  The area which surprised me most was his confirmation that this sale was 
executed on 30 October.  The minister indicated that there were some loose ends to tidy up.  I imagine this 
concerned the disposition of assets, something we discussed when the Bill was going through Parliament, and 
that is not surprising.  However, even those questions would be answered by the beginning of December, or did 
the minister just say December? 

Hon M.J. Criddle:  I said “early December”.  

Hon KIM CHANCE:  What surprises me is the clarity with which the minister is able to respond on the 
execution date of the sale:  30 October.  As the Leader of the Opposition has clearly stated, that date is five days 
from the close of the tenders. 

I want to refer to a smaller contract, that between the Government and DaimlerChrysler for the provision of 
urban buses.  The selection of a preferred tenderer to the finalisation of the contract took eight months.  It was 
not considered to be a surprisingly long period.  The contract would have involved due diligence tests and the 
appointment of a probity auditor.  I do not recall any member of the Opposition expressing surprise or 
disappointment that the process took eight months.  The Westrail sale is an immensely complicated asset sale 
going through the process in five days.  Perhaps members should be applauding the minister. 
Several members interjected. 
The PRESIDENT:  Order!  The member on his feet is being interrupted constantly.  He has limited time and is 
trying to express his views. 

Hon KIM CHANCE:  If applause and congratulations are warranted, the Opposition will be the first to offer 
them; the minister knows that.  I am stunned that such a complex process can be gone through in five days when 
it takes eight months to buy a few buses.  In the near future, I would like the minister to explain to the House the 
due diligence process that has been followed and the process by which a probity auditor was appointed.  It would 
be too much to ask him to do that today.  I do not need the confidential details but I would like to know the 
methodology and administrative practices used. 

Hon M.J. Criddle:  Would the member like a briefing? 

Hon KIM CHANCE:  A briefing would be fine.  The Opposition needs to understand how the task was 
completed in five days.  I find it stunning that it was completed in five days.  In the light of the fact that there 
were a number of bidders - some of whom were highly creditable - I would like to know how the successful 
bidder was selected from the group in five days.  I would like to know what processes were put in place.  I 
believe it is a modest, albeit important, request. 
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Hon N.D. Griffiths:  More importantly, how does it compare with the AlintaGas processes? 
Hon KIM CHANCE:  Quite so. 
Hon N.D. Griffiths:  It is a disgrace. 
Hon KIM CHANCE:  We do not know it is a disgrace.  The Leader of the Opposition raised a question about the 
disposition of the disused rail land.  The minister has provided what seems to be a first-class answer.  If the 
matter has been tabled in the detail to which the minister alludes, that is fine.  I do not expect the matter to be 
clarified today, but disused rail land of considerable value must be disposed of.  The public needs to know what 
will happen to the land.  The minister says that the information is publicly available.  I refer specifically to the 
land at Picton.  The Opposition is also interested in the disposition of the old Alcoa line land, commonly referred 
to as the Mundijong-Jarrahdale rail link.  It is land of considerable value.  The Opposition wants to know who 
will have the land and what will be done with it. 

The Opposition has an issue to raise about the publication supporting the sale, which has presented Genesee and 
Wyoming Inc as a world-class operator.  This company has a total world capitalisation of about $150m.  
Genesee and Wyoming, in a pool full of sharks, is a minnow.  It may well be an able, small-line operator in the 
United States, Australia and other countries, but at a world capitalisation of $150m, it is a minnow.  Western 
Australia has not got, in the adopted buyer, a world-class operator, as was promised.  Genesee and Wyoming 
does not even pretend to be an A-class operator.  Wesfarmers Ltd, it could be argued, is an A-class operator, but 
of road, rather than rail transport systems.  I understand that Wesfarmers has said that its interests in road 
transport do not conflict with its potential interest in rail transport, because they revolve around different 
commodities.  That may be true, but we have only to look at New Zealand.  When Wisconsin Central Railroad 
took over New Zealand railways, Wisconsin did not own a truck, but it did not take long before it was the 
biggest road operator in New Zealand.  That was when the line closures started.  I am sure that Wisconsin is a 
good transport operator, but I do not think that, given Wesfarmers’ current road transport interests, it would 
never be interested in replacing rail freight with its own road transport fleet.  Wesfarmers will be interested in 
what works for Wesfarmers.  That is legitimate - private enterprise is supposed to work by making the 
appropriate commercial decision.  That is one of the reasons that so many people argued against the privatisation 
of Westrail.  It is not a matter of right and wrong, but rather the perspective from which the issue is looked at - 
from the perspective of a company that wishes to make a profit, or from that of someone wanting to continue a 
rail service to a particular part of Western Australia.  
Hon M.J. Criddle:  What has happened in the past 60 years?  Westrail has contracted to the point where it does 
not have a rail service.  
Hon KIM CHANCE:  In the last 60 years Westrail has provided a very good service.   

HON B.K. DONALDSON (Agricultural) [4.08 pm]:  I was smiling at Hon Kim Chance, as he spoke about 
Wesfarmers’ possible conflict of interest.  Wesfarmers has been able to move very successfully into a wide area 
of service delivery in Western Australia.  I am heartened that Wesfarmers is actually involved.  It is a Western 
Australian owned company that seems to get its priorities right on the services it provides.  
Hon Ken Travers:  Are you a shareholder? 

Hon B.K. DONALDSON:  I sold all my shares due to the likelihood of questions of that nature being asked.  
Frankly, I am very pleased that I can say that I can support Wesfarmers without any fear of a conflict of interest.  

Hon Ljiljanna Ravlich interjected.  

The PRESIDENT:  Will Hon Ljiljanna Ravlich stop interjecting so that I can hear the speakers?  

Hon B.K. DONALDSON:  That is the first good point about the privatisation of grain freight.  As the minister 
rightly pointed out, under the third party access regime, competitors in other States have been talking to Iluka 
Resources Limited, Alcoa of Australia Ltd and Co-operative Bulk Handling Ltd.  Operators in the eastern States 
would have had the opportunity to put their rolling stock on the lines here, and we would have finished up with a 
pretty uncompetitive system.   

The second aspect of the privatisation issue relates to an industrial relations regime that will allow train drivers 
and crews to work longer hours for better returns.  The operator will probably structure the delivery system 
around that.  The operator will talk carefully to Co-operative Bulk Handling Ltd about the grain delivery system.  
I am not a great believer in placing bins in strategic spots around the country and transporting the grain by road 
to a faster out-loading facility.  The minister may disagree with me.  That system should be reviewed carefully.  I 
cannot see how double-handling a product can result in cheaper rail freight costs.  I am not saying that some of 
those strategic bins are not working effectively and efficiently.  However, people are annoyed that these grains 
are being transported down roads that run alongside railway lines.  That policy has a lot to do with the train 
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turnaround times.  I am sure that if the operator looks carefully at this, it will seek to deliver grain with as little 
double handling as possible.  I will be surprised if we do not see changes.  

Hon Tom Stephens:  You will destroy the road system.  

Hon B.K. DONALDSON:  I do not think so.  Let us look at what has happened to Westrail freight.  Westrail first 
got rid of the small traffic, which was understandable.  People were not being serviced efficiently when small 
parcels and bits and pieces of freight were packed in a wagon for a whole week before being delivered.  That has 
been a major turnaround.   

Another aspect is the deregulation of grain.  Prior to deregulation Westrail was the sole mover of grain.  
Following deregulation a lot of cockies started to cart their own grain.  This was some years ago, as members 
will well remember. 

Hon Kim Chance:  Is it not a fact that the Country Shire Councils Association of WA recently considered a 
motion to go back to full regulation? 

Hon B.K. DONALDSON:  It is possible that it did.   

Hon Kim Chance:  Is that your old organisation?  

Hon B.K. DONALDSON:  Times change.  Let us move to the transportation of fertiliser.  That change was aided 
and abetted by Wesfarmers CSBP Ltd, which was not keen on loading fertiliser onto rail.  First, there was a slow 
turnaround.  The cockies were at fault there and Westrail was always reluctant to charge demurrage.  As the 
tonnage got greater and greater the farmers would employ contractors to shift it off rail to their farm sheds, or 
they shifted it themselves.  Sometimes I saw wagons of superphosphate sitting in the Koorda rail yard for over a 
week.  That was tying up rolling stock, yet I cannot remember anyone being charged demurrage.  By rights, 
Westrail should have charged demurrage, but it did not.  The farmers probably would have grizzled if they had 
been billed for it.  Eventually that arrangement was scrapped, so more and more fertiliser was transported by 
road, and farmers found that was convenient.  I had fertiliser delivered from Kwinana to my farm shed - a 
distance of over 300 kilometres.  It was dumped in my shed by an out-loader for less than it could be transported 
by rail and then delivered by a road contractor to my shed.  That was convenient and people started to rely on 
road transport.  Farmers are all a bit gung-ho.  However, we found that our partners were being confronted by B-
doubles and road trains when they drove in country municipalities to go shopping or to take children to sport or 
to school.   

It has also been brought to the attention of many local councils that they must find a lot more money to pay for 
road damage.  As members well know, many of the sub-bases of our roads were never designed to carry the 
present heavy loads.  Roads break down sometimes due to a little moisture and sometimes because they are not 
used enough.  A road must be used if it is to maintain its compaction and survive for a long time.  Unfortunately, 
I am sure that many members who represent agricultural electorates pass very little traffic when they drive down 
many country roads.  When pressure is suddenly applied to those roads they break down.  When water breaks 
through a road, that is the end of it.  Trucks literally go through the roads.  Although many members have said 
that financial savings can be made by having freight carried on roads, they now realise that we should be putting 
bulk commodities back on rail, especially where a railway line runs parallel to a road. 

I would be surprised if the Wesfarmers Ltd-Genesee and Wyoming Inc joint venture did not intend to market 
aggressively.  Members have a lot of respect for Mr Michael Chaney, the chief executive officer of Wesfarmers; 
he is a pretty shrewd operator.  I am sure those involved in the joint venture will leave no stone unturned.  Mr 
Chaney looks very closely at the bottom line and will look to make a profit and maintain competitive prices 
because the joint venture will also face a competitive challenge under the third party access regime. 

Hon Ljiljanna Ravlich:  Profit is different from public interest; you would admit that, would you not? 

Hon B.K. DONALDSON:  I do not listen to interjections because it spoils my time. 

Hon Ljiljanna Ravlich interjected. 

The PRESIDENT:  Order!   

Hon B.K. DONALDSON:  Another forgotten aspect of this deal is that 50 000 kilometres of free access was 
provided to the Hotham Valley Tourist Railway and other small organisations which run rail groups on 
weekends.  That may not sound like much.  However, it is part of the overall deal and will at least give 
protection to the people who restore carriages, engines and so on, as they will have free access to continue those 
very popular operations.  Hardly a weekend goes by when the Hotham Valley railway is not running somewhere.  
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Hon Cheryl Davenport and I were at Toodyay one Sunday a few weeks ago for the launch of Senior’s Week and 
the Hotham Valley railway went up there that day; it is in country areas all the time. 

Hon Ken Travers interjected. 

Hon B.K. DONALDSON:  A former colleague, Mr Barry Blaikie, reminded me I had two reasons for being 
there:  My age and the fact that the event was in part of my electorate.  I suddenly realised I was a senior citizen - 
a very hard lesson to learn.  I strongly support the sale of Westrail freight. 

HON J.A. SCOTT (South Metropolitan) [4.18 pm]:  It is interesting to note that Hon Bruce Donaldson’s speech 
links in with that of Hon Kim Chance.  Hon Bruce Donaldson said the reason that the Country Shire Councils 
Association of WA is concerned about what happens with rail and wants it to be regulated is largely due to the 
damage being done to country roads.  As Hon Bruce Donaldson correctly pointed out, there is a huge hidden cost 
in having road trains in this State, and indeed in every State.  Unfortunately, we are now having to make those 
road trains pay their way, which, because of the impact of fuel price rises and so on, is very difficult to achieve at 
this time.  They are, nonetheless, real costs.  Hon Kim Chance said that the section in the Act covering the 
closure of railway lines is not watertight.  If a company can operate its road trains in areas in which returns from 
rail transport are low, it could argue that it is not worthwhile keeping the lines open.  We know full well the 
approach Wesfarmers Ltd takes when it has a monopoly. 

Hon M.J. Criddle:  It will not have a monopoly; companies will have open access.  You do not seem to 
understand the basic principle. 

Hon J.A. SCOTT:  Wesfarmers bought all the major contracts in the State.  A company that has all the major 
contracts has a monopoly.  Although that may change, so far when Wesfarmers has had a monopoly it has 
ruthlessly hammered the consumer as evidenced during the recent petrol price rises.  The price of liquefied 
petroleum gas to consumers increased immensely overnight, even though the cost of LPG to Wesfarmers did not 
increase.  Due to actions in the lower House, Wesfarmers stepped back from aligning its prices with those in the 
eastern States.  As a result, for once LPG is cheaper in Western Australia than it is in other States, despite 
Wesfarmers’ arguments in the past that the LPG market in Western Australia is so small that the price could not 
be cheaper.  Wesfarmers suddenly moved away from that approach due to the threat to cap the price of LPG.  

I agree that both rail and road freight operations can work together to benefit the community as long as it is done 
well with the community's interest at heart rather than simply for profit.  However, I am concerned that a large 
trucking company that owns the rail system may reduce rail freight on less profitable spur lines by trucking the 
freight and, consequently, may close those lines.  Road train operators are not asked to pay the true cost of the 
damage trucks do to roads; therefore that industry is increasingly being subsidised while rail freight operations 
wind down.  During debate on the Rail Freight System Bill the minister agreed that the issue of hidden subsidies 
on road freight needed to be addressed. 
Hon M.J. Criddle:  You did not take that up. 

Hon J.A. SCOTT:  That does not mean the Government should ignore the issue.  Is the minister saying that 
because the Government could not get a deal out of Hon Jim Scott, a problem should not be dealt with?  That is 
pathetic behaviour.  If the Government acknowledges that hidden subsidies are a problem, it should address that 
problem. 
Hon M.J. Criddle:  We are dealing with the issue so that we can be more competitive. 

Hon J.A. SCOTT:  I hope that is the case.  I am sure that its current managers have more enthusiasm than that 
perhaps evident among its previous managers, who appeared lacking in that regard.  That problem could have 
been solved by a Government with a little more enthusiasm because, after all, it is the Government that 
ultimately decides how the rail system will operate. 

How will the sale contract affect some of the new commitments made by the Government since the Bill became 
an Act of this Parliament?  The commitments include providing rail services to Oakajee.  Who will pay for that 
service?  Westrail will pay.  Will a new operator run the service, or will the mine operate that system?  Will a 
new lot of debt be created, and how will it be serviced?  Does the total consideration of the remaining debt 
include the provision of that rail service? 

In considering whether Wesfarmers is likely to use its trucking service in lieu of a rail service, an opportunity 
arises for an expansion of rail services.  I am thinking particularly of the lime roads proposed for places like 
Toodyay.  A great deal of concern has been expressed about the impact of many thousands of heavy haulage 
trucks passing through those communities.  Is it proposed that the new rail line will link with existing rail lines?  
Those roads will re-create many of the problems rural shires have experienced; namely, huge debt levels and the 
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difficulties created by thousands of trucks running past schools.  I refer to places like Toodyay.  The minister 
should provide more detail about his vision for the future of rail. 

HON MARK NEVILL (Mining and Pastoral) [4.29 pm]:  The price for the Westrail freight purchase of $585m 
is surprisingly high, as it is twice the annual operating revenue of the railway.  The operator will need a lot of 
value in its returns to justify paying that amount for the network.  The debt was projected to rise another $500m 
over the next five years.  Therefore, a future Government would have had to service about $1.25b in debt in 
another five years.  That is untenable.  One of Alcoa of Australia Ltd’s contracts is up for grabs, and there is no 
guarantee under national competition policy that the purchaser will secure that contract.  They must lock away 
those contracts. 

Wesfarmers has great synergies and was buying more than only Westrail.  It has a major coal mine in 
Queensland and I presume that Genesee and Wyoming will move that coal by rail.  Wesfarmers has broader 
interests than only the railway in this partnership. 

Five days in which to make a decision sounds like a short time, but it should be considered in the light of the 
information the rail freight task force went through before that and the form of the final offers and whether they 
were in fact final.  No-one seems to be complaining about the fact that it was only five days.  If the other bidders 
were complaining, that would be a valid criticism.  I have been in touch with all the bidders and none of them 
expressed any concern about the tender process.  If no-one is complaining, I suggest that it may have been okay.  
Many track closures occurred under Westrail, and that is looked after under this program.  Milk, timber, coal and 
fertiliser have come back onto rail in other States.  The industrial relations set-up seems to have gone well, and 
90 per cent of the work force has made the transition.  Genesee and Wyoming is a very competent, and probably 
very tough, operator.  There is no argument about its competence to run a rail system, but it has a record of being 
tough industrially.  A lot of that comes from the surplus of train drivers that occurred when it took over the 
national rail line in South Australia.  That situation certainly will not be repeated in Western Australia.   

Motion lapsed, pursuant to standing orders. 
 


